o U, WN PR

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47

Town of Charlotte
DEVELOPMENT REVIEW BOARD MEETING
Meeting Conducted at Town Hall and via Teleconference
March 26, 2025

DRAFT — subject to approval by the Development Review Board

Development Review Board: Charles Russell (Chair), Gerald Bouchard (Vice Chair), Alexa Lewis,
Brandon Tieso, Doug Paton.

Staff: Aaron Brown, Zoning Administrator.

OTHERS: Frank Tenney, Paul Plante, Clark Hinsdale, Carrie Spear, Dave Marshall, Sam Darling,
George Darling, Dianne Leary, James LaBerge, Adam Hausmann.

Posted Agenda:
7:00 PM Call to Order; changes to agenda (if any)
7:02 PM Public Comment (not pertaining to pending applications)

7:05 PM DRB 25-16-CU/SP Darling’s Boatworks — public hearing - Proposed boat yard with
7,560 building at 735 Ferry Rd.

7:45 PM DRB 24-179-SK Leary/LaBerge — sketch plan review continued — 2-Lot Subdivision at
4670 Greenbush Rd.

8:00 PM Review & Approve Meeting Minutes: draft DRB Minutes, March 12, 2025

8:05 PM Markup & Approve Draft Decisions and Sketch Letters: DRB 25-14-SK
Hinsdale/Hausmann

8:15PM Discussion on DRB Rules of Procedure

8:45 PM Deliberations on closed applications (if any)

9:00 PM Adjourn

CALL TO ORDER:
Chair Charles Russell called the meeting to order at 7:00pm.

CHANGES TO AGENDA: None.
Public Comment: None.

DRB 25-16-CU/SP Darling’s Boatworks — public hearing - Proposed boat yard with 7,560 building
at 735 Ferry Rd.:

Russell asked about any new ex parte communications or conflicts of interest; none noted.
Russell swore in Sam Darling, George Darling, and Dave Marshall.

Marshall opened the discussion with a review of mapping of current conditions. Marshall said
that the northern portion is permitted as a contractor’s yard with a proposed building that was never
built. The applicants are proposing a slightly larger building for boat repairs. Russell asked if the intent
is to keep the proposed building out of the conservation zone. Marshall confirmed.

Marshall then moved to mapping of proposed conditions, including the building for boat repairs,
boat storage areas, and new permeable pavement, which are part of the stormwater management plan.
Marshall pointed to class 3 wetlands, coniferous evergreen trees that will be supplemented, two existing
buildings and parking that will be retained. Brandon Tieso asked Marshall to elaborate on the new
permeable pavement systems. Marshall noted the applicants’ preference for, and explained, the waffle
system depicted. Russell asked about impervious areas as it applies to lot coverage. Marshall clarified



48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96

page 2 Development Review Board 03/26/2025

total proposed lot coverage is 19.14% and noted improper depiction in the narrative. The 19.14%
includes permeable pavers because Charlotte’s regulations still count them as impervious surface.

Marshall then reviewed the proposed landscaping plan including supplemental trees, mainly
coniferous evergreens, for enhanced screening. Gerald Bouchard provided background on the
contractor’s yard approval — the existing trees were intended for noise control — and he asked whether a
maple tree was included in the plan, which the contractor’s yard application had proposed but not
planted.

Marshall then reviewed the site grading plan and the proposed lighting plan. The lighting plan
includes a light at each door, to illuminate the outside of the facility, and mounted lights over the garage
doors for security. The security lights are controlled by motion and timers. Marshall said that security
lighting can be customized. Doug Paton pointed out inconsistencies between the narrative and the plan,
specifically the numbers and types of light fixtures. Marhsall agreed and said the narrative was not
updated after the lighting plan developed. Paton said the proposed, mounted security lighting is massive
and tall, and that some security lighting is misclassified as site lighting. Marshall said that security
lighting can be intensified and dimmed gradually. Paton noted concern for one 20-foot-high security
light that might impact drivers on Ferry Road. Marshall said a shield or brim are options. Paton
wondered if the light could be lowered to 15 feet.

Bouchard asked why the proposed building is classified as an accessory structure. Marshall said
the Land Use Regulations do not list a boat repair building as a primary use, but do list boat sales and
service. Bouchard then asked if the facility creates any liquid or solid waste or noxious odors, such as
epoxy. Sam Darling said that sanded epoxy is not considered hazardous waste and that volatile organic
compounds dissipate when epoxy dries. He added that no work will occur outside.

Bouchard asked about the date of the conditional use and site plan approval for the contractor’s yard.
This was clarified as 2020.

Frank Tenney asked about the proposed color of the building. Sam Darling said the walls would
be a barn red but could not recall the color of the roof.

Alexa Lewis recalled from the previous site visit that there was mention of a trail to run in front
of the building. Marshall said the trail will be in the right of way and controlled by the Town.

MOTION by Brandon Tieso; seconded by Gerald Bouchard, to close DRB 25-16-CU/SP
Darling’s Boatworks. VOTE: 5 ayes, motion carried.

DRB 24-179-SK Leary/LaBerge — sketch plan review continued — 2-Lot Subdivision at 4670
Greenbush Rd.:

Russell asked about any new ex parte communications or conflicts of interest; none noted.

Dianne Leary said a survey was completed since the last sketch plan review and distributed
mapping. Leary said in 1986 a 22.4-acre lot was subdivided into 10.4 and 12 acre lots. The 12-acre lot
was later subdivided into two lots. Leary said a surveyor inaccurately depicted their lot as 10.4-acres.
The recent survey determined it is 9.3 acres. Leary wanted the Development Review Board (DRB) to be
made aware of the issue and asked for advice on how to proceed. Russell said the 0.7 acre could be
acquired from a neighbor (boundary adjustment) or through a transfer of development rights through a
noncontiguous Planned Residential Development. Lewis added that the 0.7 acres could be purchased
from conserved land. Bouchard said that the development rights for the 0.7 acre could be purchased
from the neighbor if they are unwilling to sell the land. Russell added that the transfer of development
rights could be from a lot in another part of town.

Clark Hinsdale spoke to state and local precedents while advocating for the applicants.

Review & Approve Meeting Minutes: draft DRB Minutes, March 12, 2025:
MOTION by Alexa Lewis; seconded by Gerald Bouchard, to approve the DRB meeting
minutes for March 12, 2025, as amended. VOTE: 5 ayes, motion carried.



97

98

99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136

page 3 Development Review Board 03/26/2025

Markup & Approve Draft Decisions and Sketch Letters: DRB 25-14-SK Hinsdale/Hausmann:
MOTION by Brandon Tieso; seconded by Alexa Lewis, to approve the Sketch Letter for
DRB 25-14-SK Hinsdale/Hausmann, as amended. VOTE: 5 ayes, motion carried.

Deliberations on closed applications:

Russell suggested a condition for a shield on the security lighting as discussed. This led to a
discussion of how to evaluate the level of illumination, by a third party or commissioning report and
system verification. Paton pointed out that significant changes are needed to the lighting plan. Russell
suggested Paton compile his feedback and send to the Zoning Administrator.

Russell said the roof should be a dark neutral color.

Russell read from the previous decision which required the applicants to plant a maple tree in the
northeast corner of the property by the main entrance. Paton pointed out that some trees along Ferry
Road are sick or dead. Russell suggested the replacement of unhealthy trees that create gaps as a
condition.

Aaron Brown asked about the hours of operation; the DRB was fine with the hours of 8am-6pm.

Discussion on DRB Rules of Procedure:

Lewis had a clarifying suggestion for Section III E) Deliberative session. Russell had drafted
changes to E), F) Executive session, and H) Interested Persons which he reviewed.

Under Section III Paton asked for clarification on I) Official act or action. Consensus to strike.

Bouchard called attention to Section IV and a reference to after Town Meeting and
appointments. Consensus to change to after annual appointment.

Lewis referenced the expectation of alternates as outlined in Section V C). Russell explained
how the item, as written, can be interpreted to mean an alternate does not need to serve beyond sketch
plan.

Lewis called attention to Section VII and asked whether a hearing or meeting could not exceed
three hours. Russell responded that the hearing cannot exceed 3 hours and suggested removal.
Consensus to do so. Russell spoke to additional edits that he had made in this section. Lewis asked about
M) and Russell’s question as to whether an application can be dismissed. Lewis asked if dismissal is an
option. Russell suggested that the Town Attorney weigh-in.

Lewis moved to Section X and asked Russell to clarify his question on timing of approval for
draft decisions. Russell suggested that the Town Attorney weigh-in on this and what can be used in
Deliberations.

MOTION by Brandon Tieso; seconded by Alexa Lewis, to adjourn the meeting. VOTE: 5
ayes, motion carried. The meeting was adjourned at 9:19pm.

Minutes respectfully submitted.:
Nicole Burnell, Recording Secretary with edits by Aaron Brown




